
LOWER PAXTON TOWNSHIP 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

 

Minutes of Workshop Meeting held December 7, 2010 

 
A workshop meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Lower Paxton Township was called 

to order at 6:11 p.m. by Chairman William B. Hawk, on the above date in the Lower Paxton 

Township Municipal Center, 425 Prince Street, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. 

 Supervisors present in addition to Mr. Hawk were: William C. Seeds, Sr., William L. 

Hornung, Gary A. Crissman, and David B. Blain. 

 Also in attendance were George Wolfe, Township Manager; and Watson Fisher and Ted 

Robertson, SWAN. 

 
Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Mr. Crissman led in the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance.   

Mr. Crissman noted that today marks the 60th anniversary of the attack on Pearl Harbor.  

 
Public Comment 

 
No comments were presented. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

 
Continued discussion regarding the 2011 fiscal year budgets 

 
Mr. Wolfe noted the purpose of the meeting is to work towards finalizing the 2011 

Budget. He noted that the General Fund Budget is complete except for determining what the 

transfer amount will be to the General Improvement Fund (GIF) for capital projects, and if a real 

estate tax increase will be implemented. He noted that the General Fund balance at the end of 

2011 will be below the 25% threshold that the Board has established. He noted that it is a Board 

policy to maintain 25% of the requirements for operating expenditures in any fiscal year, noting 

that the proposed budget is almost $18 million which will require a fund balance of $4.4 million. 

He noted if the Board spends in accordance with the proposed GIF, the General Fund balance 

will fall below that 25% threshold at $3.5 million.  



Mr. Wolfe noted to maintain the General Fund balance the Board has discussed 

eliminating certain projects from the GIF, such as: the pavement management program, financial 

management system, and George Park carryover projects that were not completed in 2010. He 

noted that the Board has also discussed, in general terms, an increase in real estate taxes.  

Mr. Wolfe noted that the spreadsheet for the GIF shows revenues of $687,700.  He noted 

that those revenues will come from realizing the Dauphin County Bond for the Village of 

Linglestown project and $40,000 from another grant for the park planning process for the 

Wolfersberger Tract. He noted that the total expenditures for the GIF are $2,023,500 which 

provides a deficit of $1,340,840 that would come from the General Fund balance. He noted that 

the GIF proposes to spend these funds on the following: stormwater management projects, 

$700,000; traffic signal projects, $60,000; Jonestown Road bridge improvement project design 

work, $39,500; and the Village of Linglestown payment of $800,000. He noted that $80,000 is 

budgeted for the park planning process for the Wolfersberger Tract, and of that $40,000 would 

be paid by a Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (DCNR) grant if the Board 

chooses to accept the grant and do the work. He noted that next phase of George Park is 

estimated to cost $153,000, completion of the berm work for the Compost Facility is budgeted at 

$15,000, financial management system at $100,000, and the pavement management system at 

$75,000.  

Mr. Wolfe noted that there is a large stormwater project planned for the Clermont 

projected that will cost $300,000 and six stormwater projects as a result of sanitary sewer mini-

basin work. He noted as the sewer work is completed in the older subdivisions, it is found that 

the stormsewers also need major upgrades and this work must be completed prior to repaving the 

roads. He noted that $240,000 has been budgeted for this work.  

Mr. Wolfe noted that several traffic signals need new span wires and are estimated to cost 

$30,000, and another $30,000 is budgeted to tether traffic signals along Route 22. He explained 

that those traffic signals are not connected to masts and they need to be tethered at the bottom to 

prevent them from blowing in the wind which will provide a longer life for the wire supporting 

the traffic signals.  

Mr. Wolfe noted that everything included in these projects have been previously 

discussed with Board members and there is nothing new.  

 2



Mr. Wolfe explained that the Wolfersberger planning grant that was applied for in the fall 

of this year and was recently approved and provides for a matching grant fund. He noted that the 

remainder of the items has been listed in the budget for several years in various capacities. He 

noted that some of the projects can be delayed, such as the pavement and financial management 

programs, the continuation of implementing George Park, some of the stormsewer work 

identified by Mr. Robbins, however, the mini-basin work should not be delayed since a contract 

will be bid soon to comply with the consent decree for sanitary sewer improvements. He noted 

that more discussion needs to be held on the 2011 GIF and a determination is needed for the 

funding of it.  

Mr. Seeds questioned if the money for the Wolfersberger Tract study is included or was it 

removed from the budget. Mr. Wolfe noted that the $80,000 is still included in the budget, noting 

that $40,000 would come from the DCNR grant. He explained that the Township has been 

awarded the grant but it has not accepted the grant yet. He noted that the $40,000 in revenues for 

the grant is included in the GIF. Mr. Seeds questioned how long the Board has to make up its 

mind. Mr. Wolfe suggested that it should be before the end of the first quarter of 2011. Mr. 

Hornung questioned what would be done with those grant funds. Mr. Wolfe answered that the 

funds would be spent on a study to determine how to develop a usable municipal facility. He 

noted that the Parks Board does not want to duplicate everything that it has at Koons Park, noting 

that both parks are within walking distance of each other. Mr. Hornung questioned if it was for 

bricks and mortar. Mr. Wolfe answered no.  

Mr. Seeds noted that the Parks and Recreation Board held a special meeting a few weeks 

ago to discuss the planning of the new park.   Mr. Wolfe noted that he was not in attendance. Mr. 

Seeds questioned how many people showed up.  Mr. Watson Fisher explained that he was 

present and there was a good crowd of people and the meeting was well received. He estimated 

around 30 people were present, most of the people being from the Linglestown area. Mr. Seeds 

questioned if the people were concerned with the opening of a new park or changes being made 

to Koons Park. Mr. Fisher noted that the concerns that were presented were related to Koons 

Park and the proximity of the houses to the fields and the lighting and the sound system. He 

noted that the people requested that changes be made. He noted that Mr. Luetchford was 

explaining some possible changes to be made and the people were very interested in that. Mr. 

Seeds questioned if people were bothered by the lights. Mr. Fisher answered that they were 

 3



bothered by the lights. Mr. Wolfe explained that the football association brings in temporary 

lights. Mr. Seeds suggested that the tennis court lights would bother more residents. Mr. Wolfe 

noted that not everyone is supportive of recreation facilities. Mr. Seeds noted that he did not 

know of any changes that anyone would want to make at Koons Park. He noted that most of the 

ball fields are well established by the various groups that use them. He noted that you could not 

just make changes as those organizations have had long-time commitments. He questioned Mr. 

Fisher if anyone wanted to make significant changes. Mr. Fisher answered no, noting that the 

proximity to the baseball fields and balls hitting the cars was a concern. Mr. Hornung noted that 

the Township must spend $40,000 to get $40,000 but he questioned if this project could be done 

in-house. Mr. Wolfe answered that you would get a much better product if it was done by a firm. 

He noted that Mr. Luetchford has the capability to do it, but he already has much to do and no 

one else on staff has the ability to do the study. 

Mr. Hawk questioned if the Board accepts the grant, how long would it be before it 

would have to be spent. Mr. Wolfe suggested that the Board would have an 18-month period to 

get the work done. Mr. Crissman suggested that it should remain in the budget and a decision can 

be made at a later date. Mr. Wolfe noted that you don’t make a commitment to the grant funds 

until the Board signs the contract with the consultant. He noted if the Township drew down the 

money it could give it back. He noted that the hiring of a consultant would go through the 

Request for Proposal (RFP) process. Mr. Hawk suggested that you would never hear about the 

dissatisfaction with Koons Park if it weren’t for Wolfersberger Tract discussions. Mr. Seeds 

noted that there would be so much opposition to moving baseball and football fields. Mr. Wolfe 

noted that the purpose of the meeting wasn’t to inform people that they would not have their 

baseball fields, but more along the lines of providing a more desirable and usable facility three 

blocks away. He noted that the study may show that a better field could be built that would meet 

the needs of the teams so every time you hit a foul ball, you do not hit a windshield on a car. Mr. 

Hornung questioned how much of the $800,000 must be spent for the Village of Linglestown 

project. Mr. Wolfe noted that all of it must be spent as it is a $4 million project and the Township 

is liable for 20%, and the project will be completed next year and PENNDOT will bill the 

Township for its share.  

Mr. Hornung questioned if staff is committed to spending $153,000 for the George Park 

improvements. Mr. Wolfe noted that George Park does not have basketball courts, etc., but that 

 4



doesn’t mean that it needs to be done next year. He noted that the improvements were to be 

completed this year, but it wasn’t. Mr. Hornung questioned if the entire project and spending of 

$153,000 could be put off until 2012. Mr. Wolfe answered yes. 

Mr. Hornung questioned if the financial management system could be delayed until 2012. 

Mr. Wolfe noted that the financial and pavement management systems were taken out of the 

2010 budget and could be removed from the 2011 budget as well. Mr. Hornung questioned what 

are the consequences if the financial management system is delayed another year. Mr. Wolfe 

answered that the Township is using an antiquated system that is not interactive. Mr. Blain noted 

that there are more benefits to leaving it in noting that the General Ledger (GL) system does not 

mesh with the FC or the Sewer Authority’s GL system. He noted if this occurred, it would save 

payroll dollars so employees would not be redundant in their work. He noted that the Board must 

decide to leave it in the budget. He noted that the Township would get a return on this 

investment as well as the pavement management system. Mr. Hawk noted that both programs are 

an investment for the Township. Mr. Blain noted that the current financial system does not work 

with the purchase card system, and the Township is losing funds from this.  He noted once a new 

GL system is put into place, then the Township could realized the $25,000 cash back revenues 

from the purchase card system. He noted in two to three years the savings would pay off the new 

financial management system. Mr. Hornung noted that the purchase card system is contingent on 

how many vendors will accept it, and when he looked to do it for his business, the majority of his 

vendors did not want to pay the 2.5% service fee. Mr. Wolfe noted that PERC’s, the traffic signal 

maintenance contractor who does more than $100,000 a year in business with the Township, will 

not sign up, noting that their excuse is that they deal with government and it always pays its bills 

on time. He noted that with a $17 million budget, spending $10 million on the street, there will 

be vendors who will accept the service fee. He noted that the Township spends over $300,000 in 

utilities costs alone.  

Mr. Hornung questioned how fast we could implement the purchase card system. Mr. 

Blain noted that Mr. Houck is trying to use it now but the current financial system has an issue 

with a link from the bank. He noted that it requires a lot of effort and work to do it with the 

current system. Mr. Wolfe noted that the Township needs to have a GL package that can 

interface when making credit card payment electronically, and put each expenditure in the 

correct account. Mr. Blain noted that you cannot just do a journal entry because you need to code 

 5



everything to a separate GL account and it would take a long time to do it manually.  He noted 

you need an interlinked system that knows the GL accounts and can upload the information to it. 

Mr. Blain noted that the purchase card program is through PNC Bank.  

Mr. Hornung noted that the Board must cut the projects by $600,000 if its want to end 

2011 with a 25% threshold to include a 10% tax increase. Mr. Wolfe noted that you could go 

below the 25% threshold with the idea that the increase in taxes would be used to build up future 

reserves. Mr. Hawk noted that the tax increase would generate $250,000 in revenues. Mr. Wolfe 

noted that it would be an additional $250,000 each year. He noted that for the most part, the 

Board has completed its strategic plan, and he has started a list for a new strategic plan, however, 

none of those items have been committed to or started. He noted the current items on the list are 

in process of some fashion. He noted that the Board could stop doing capital projects for the next 

ten years. Mr. Hornung noted that the Board has two options, to change the 25% threshold policy 

or dip into the reserves. Mr. Wolfe suggested that the Board does not have to change the rule, 

rather, they could purposely waive it with the intention of coming back to it. He noted that he 

would not want to send a message to staff that the Board is willing to go below the 25% 

threshold. He noted, if the Board dips below the 25%, it is the Board’s decision, and it could be 

done with the intention of making up the funds. Mr. Hawk noted that it is very easy to go below 

a threshold and never make it up.  

Mr. Hornung noted that the projects do not look much better for 2012. He noted that it 

may not be easy to put the funds back into the account in 2012. He noted if the Board puts off the 

projects, it may only have $200,000 to $400,000 to spend in capital projects.  Mr. Wolfe noted if 

the Board chose to finish what was on the list, the only items that it would add to it would be 

stormwater projects in sanitary sewer mini-basins in 2012, unless the Board builds another phase 

for the capital plan and adds other items. 

Mr. Hornung noted that currently the income equals the expenses, not counting any 

capital projects. He noted if the Board tried to put back money in the General Fund balance, the 

tax increase would only provide for a small amount to put back into the General Fund, assuming 

we do no projects and for the next four years put money back into the Capital Fund. Mr. Wolfe 

noted that is what the Board did in the 1990’s as it built up the Capital Fund and did no projects 

until 1997. Mr. Hornung noted that the road system is in need of much work as the Township has 

not kept up with the road work. Mr. Wolfe explained that he does not agree with this to the same 

 6



extent that Mr. Robbins does, but he believes that the Township should be paving more than it 

currently is.  

Mr. Seeds noted that the economy was better in the 1990’s and the Township did the 

work for Lingle Park during that time. Mr. Wolfe noted that there was a four-year period that the 

Township saved money and did no major projects. He noted that the Board does not have to do 

what is listed. Mr. Hornung suggested that the expenses will continue to increase, with payroll 

increases and the 10% increase may end up going towards expenses and nothing for the capital 

projects. He suggested the Board has three choices; raise taxes 20%, cut $600,000 out of the 

capital projects, or waive the threshold percentage to keep in the reserve account. He noted that 

the Board could reduce the reserve amount, noting that it is meant to be used for rainy day funds, 

for times like this. He noted that he would want to be sensible about it and do projections for 

future spending to determine if the rate was decreased would the Township be out of money in 

three years.  He questioned if Mr. Wolfe had an answer to this question. Mr. Hawk suggested 

that the Board could do a combination of both, noting that Mr. Wolfe mentioned two potential 

cost affective projects, the road pavement and financial management systems. Mr. Wolfe noted, 

in response to Mr. Hornung’s concern, one approach would be to increase taxes, decrease the 

GIF to the bare minimum and wait to see what it looks like at the end of 2011. Mr. Hornung 

noted that he would agree with that approach.  

Mr. Hawk noted that Mr. Blain is very adamant about keeping the pavement management 

system. Mr. Blain noted that there are only two projects that will provide a return for the money, 

the pavement management and financial management system. He noted that it would provide for 

better use of the purchase card system. He noted that the road management system could help the 

Township extend the life of a road and pay for itself over time. Mr. Hornung noted that he agrees 

with Mr. Blain but his problem is trying to get a factor on how much money should be put 

towards projects, how much the taxes should be increased, and how much the Board should take 

from the GIF. He noted once those decisions are made then it can be determine what projects 

should be retained in 2011 budget. 

Mr. Wolfe noted that there is another option, and that would be to borrow money at this 

time when the interests rates are the lowest seen in a long time. He noted that Mr. Hoffer would 

have argued that you pay for your expenses over time. Mr. Hawk noted that there is no better 

time than now to borrow funds. Mr. Blain noted if the Township is borrowing money it can only 

 7



be for capital projects, and noting else should be done out of the General Fund for capital 

projects. Mr. Hornung stated that he did not think the Township should borrow funds. He noted 

that the Township will always have capital projects to do, so it should be added to the budget and 

planned as part of the budget. He noted to keep borrowing for capital budgets only postpones it 

and evens out the spending, but the Township would continue to pay for those projects anyways.  

He noted that the Board must force itself to budget for capital projects using $500,000 or $1 

million each year and include it in the budget every year.  

Mr. Seeds noted that the Township borrowed $6 million to purchase the new building, 

noting that not all the funds borrowed were used for the building. He noted that he would not 

want to borrow for the general budget but he might consider for a major project. Mr. Hornung 

noted that borrowing for a major project such as the Friendship Center is different.  

Mr. Blain questioned how much the Earned Income Tax (EIT) has declined for the year. 

Mr. Wolfe suggested it is around $1 million. He noted that property taxes are okay, but the EIT 

has not kept up and has not grown at the annual rate of inflation. He noted that the real estate 

transfer tax is down and general source revenues are also down. He noted that the Township is 

down approximately $1 million from where it was two years ago. Mr. Blain noted that this is the 

problem, as up until two years ago, the Township was able to fund the capital projects with those 

revenues. Mr. Wolfe noted, in the past, the community development revenues were $300,000 

net. Mr. Hornung noted that he does not see those figures coming back in the near future.  

Mr. Blain noted revenues are down $1 million in the last two years so if the revenues 

have decreased, the Board should cut capital projects by that amount until the economy recovers 

and those revenues increase. Mr. Hornung suggested that may be the right way to proceed.  Mr. 

Seeds agreed that the Township cannot afford to make park improvements that are not essential. 

Mr. Hornung noted that it is not included in the current budget. Mr. Seeds noted that the 

stormwater improvements are essential work. Mr. Hornung noted that he agrees but he 

questioned where the $600,000 would come from. He questioned, does the Board raise taxes to 

come up with the $600,000 or dip into the savings fund. Mr. Blain suggested that no capital 

projects could be done in 2011; taxes could be increased to continue to build up the reserve, and 

see what happens in 2012.  

Mr. Hawk questioned what happens if the Board does not lower the percentage on the 

General Fund balance. Mr. Wolfe noted that nothing would happen; as there is no legal 

 8



requirement to have such a threshold. Mr. Hawk noted if you raise the taxes to provide for an 

added income of $250,000, put off the George Park work, and do not purchase the financial 

management packet it would cover up to $450,000. Mr. Blain noted that there is an $800,000 

deficit. Mr. Hawk noted that the Board would still be $350,000 short of what is needed, dipping 

into the Fund Balance for that amount. He noted if you throw in the pavement management 

program if would add another $75,000 to the figure. He noted that he would not what to see the 

Board put off the preservation of the roadway system. Mr. Seeds noted that Mr. Wolfe provided 

the Board with a balance budget. Mr. Wolfe noted that was for operations and not for capital 

projects.  

Mr. Blain questioned if some of the stormwater management projects could be cut from 

the budget for 2011. He noted if you took $350,000 from those projects, and cut the pavement 

management system and financial project, it would add another $150,000, and with a 10% tax 

increase, it would provide for  a cut of $800,000 and add some funds back into the reserves to 

see what happens later. Mr. Wolfe noted if you remove the George Park improvements, you 

would meet what you need with the 10% tax increase. 

Mr. Wolfe noted that he would remove the George Park improvements and also $350,000 

from the storm water projects.  Mr. Hornung questioned if you have to spend twice as much later 

to do the stormwater projects, it does not make sense to cut it. Mr. Wolfe noted that the Board 

must approve the mini-basin work noting that the projects would not be completed. He noted that 

the Clermont project would be cut as well as miscellaneous projects. Mr. Hawk noted that 

cutting $100,000 for the financial management system as well as the tax increase revenue of 

$250,000 would amount to $853,000.  Mr. Hornung noted that he would argue for keeping the 

financial management system as it would provide a $25,000 savings in the first year. Mr. Hawk 

noted that you would run short on the Fund Balance by $100,000. Mr. Seeds noted that he is not 

in favor of a tax increase but he knows that we need to do it, noting that it would have a negative 

impact on those people who are on fixed incomes. He noted that he wants the $100,000 for the 

financial packet to remain and the roadway management packet also. He noted that he would not 

want to impose a tax increase only to maintain the 25% threshold. Mr. Hawk noted that he does 

not want to reduce the threshold percentage and would rather run short of it.  

Mr. Crissman noted that he will not support borrowing money, the pavement and 

financial managements systems are a must and should not be removed from the budget, and the 

 9



Board also needs to raise the taxes 10%, even though it would not afford the Board to maintain 

the 25% threshold. He noted that it must be a goal of the Board, that within three years it will 

realize that threshold again. Mr. Hawk noted that it only puts the Township in a $100,000 deficit 

for the Fund Balance, and to him, that is acceptable with the tax increase. Mr. Crissman noted 

that he does not mind using the Fund Balance, but if it does, then the Board must work to get 

back to the 25% threshold. He noted that he does not want to be on a Board that continually takes 

from its savings.  

Mr. Seeds noted that Mr. Crissman was opposed to borrowing funds. Mr. Crissman 

explained that the Board needs to budget within its means. Mr. Blain noted that he agreed with 

Mr. Crissman in regards to borrowing money, although the rates are very attractive. He noted 

that revenues are down $1 million and the Board would have to fund the payment of the 

principal and interest and it does not make much sense to rob Peter to pay Paul. He noted that he 

wants the pavement and financial management programs included in the budget since they are 

investments and will provide a return to the Township. He noted that he does not look at those 

two projects as a capital expense, rather as investments noting that the Township will get a quick 

payback. He noted that he is not a proponent of raising taxes; however, the Township is in a 

different situation since it has not raised taxes in 20 years, the Township’s revenues sources are 

out of wack.  He noted that the real estate taxes only provide for revenues of $2.5 million out of 

$17 million of total revenues. He noted that the Township relies heavily on EIT and real estate 

transfer tax and other things that over time have flipped. He noted that the Township is not 

diversified in its sources of revenues resources. He noted that the real estate taxes are way too 

low and they should have been raised slightly over the past few years at the rate of inflation, 

noting if the Board would have done that, the millage rate would only be 1.3 mills. He noted that 

a 10% rate increase only takes the millage rate to .96, and you only generate $250,000 with a 

10% rate increase.  Mr. Blain noted that raising the revenues by $250,000 on a budget of over 

$17 million only amounts to 1.5% increase in revenues. Mr. Crissman questioned what impact it 

would have on the average homeowner with a homes assessed at $200,000. Mr. Wolfe answered 

that it would only amount to $17.50.  Mr. Crissman noted if he hasn’t had a tax increase in over 

20 years and it will only cost him $20 maximum, he would not complain. Mr. Blain noted that 

there will be some people who will complain. Mr. Crissman suggested that the people will not 

complain when everything is explained properly. Mr. Blain noted that the economy ran so well 

 10



in the 1990’s and a good portion of 2000’s, the revenue sources got out of balance. He noted that 

the economy corrected itself, but the revenue sources were out of balance, and this is the reason 

why the Township is in the position it is in now. He noted that it is not due to the 

mismanagement of expenses. He noted that the Township has cut expenses, cutting 15 

employees. He noted that the Board cut expenses more than the amount of revenue that was lost, 

but the revenues sources are out of wack.  

Mr. Hawk noted that the message that needs to get out is that the Board has done what 

the citizens have asked them to do and that is to cut expenses by cutting 15 positions, and cutting 

the budget.  

Mr. Blain noted if the Board raises taxes 10% and if they keep the pavement and 

financial management projects in the budget, it increase would cover the two capital projects. He 

noted that the Township would see a return on those investments.  

Mr. Wolfe noted that the Board wants to increase real estate taxes by 10%, delay George 

Park Improvements until 2012, and delay $350,000 of storm water improvements until after 

2011.  Mr. Hawk noted that it would provide for $753,000. Mr. Seeds noted that the storm sewer 

work related to the mini basins would remain in the budget. Mr. Wolfe noted that is the portion 

of the work to remain in the budget, plus a small amount of funds for emergency work. Mr. 

Hornung questioned if the Board members feel comfortable going below the threshold by 

$100,000. Mr. Crissman answered only if the Board makes the commitment to restore those 

funds in the next two years. Mr. Seeds suggested that the purpose of the funds is for a rainy day 

situation and we are in a rainy day situation. Mr. Crissman noted that the Board has been 

spending down on the rainy day money and is below the threshold where it needs to be, so it is 

the Board’s responsibility to restore the funds.  

Mr. Blain suggested that the economy can’t get much worse, and suggested that it will 

continue to stagnate for a while. He noted that not much will happen until the banks free up some 

credit. He suggested that you will not see a 5% Gross National Product growth, noting that it is 

growing at 1% or 1.5% per quarter, but it is not going to expand at any rapid pace.  

Mr. Seeds noted that he is not sold on the tax increase but he wants the funds for the 

pavement management program. Mr. Blain noted that no one disagrees with Mr. Seeds, but the 

increase in taxes is to fund the new pavement and financial management programs, and there will 

be a return on those investments that will save the Township in the long term. Mr. Hawk noted if 

 11



Mr. Blain is correct, then the Township would make enough money to come up with half the 

difference of the threshold shortfall.  

Mr. Blain noted if the pavement management program is put in place next year, and Mr. 

Robbins has plans to pave a road and it shows that it may only need seal coating in place of 

repaving, the Township has just saved enough money to pay for the pavement management 

system since it would not be paving that road.  

Mr. Hornung noted if you look at a business coming out of a recession, it does not stop 

spending money, but its spends it in such a way that it will be really strong, and able to take off 

immediately. He noted that those businesses have everything working more efficiently and off 

they go. He noted that the investment on the two management systems is how a business would 

operate, and if it means a small tax increase, we have to do it. He noted in a few years as items 

ramp up, there will be no need to add personnel as the accounting system will be more efficient. 

He noted that this is the way to go. 

Mr. Blain noted if the Township is not using the purchase card system now because of 

the financial system and its inability to link with the general ledger system, the Township is 

losing money.  He noted that the Township just lost a year and a half of revenues.  

Mr. Seeds noted that the Board cut back on the tax revenues in 1995 and 1996, but the 

taxes were raised by 10% in 2002. Mr. Wolfe noted that the tax rates were raised in 2007. He 

noted that the taxes were raised twice, by 10% and 20% since he has been  Township Manager. 

Mr. Wolfe answered that there were two 10% capital tax cuts, and the per capita and 

occupational taxes were eliminated in 1995/1996. Mr. Blain explained when the Local Services 

Tax (LST) was put in place, we opted to take the $52 tax and offset property taxes by the same 

amount lowering the millage rate to .70.  He noted that the net was zero in revenues and it 

provided for reduced property taxes, however the State changed the LST, the Board opted to 

increase the tax back to .875 since it was losing half of the revenue from the Emergency Medical 

Services Tax (EMST).   

Mr. Blain noted that Derry Township’s millage rate is 1.1, and Susquehanna Township’s 

is 2 mills, and Swatara Township is 2 mills. Mr. Blain noted that Derry Township has other 

sources of revenues that the Township does not have. He noted that the Township is the largest 

municipality in the area other than the City of Harrisburg and their millage rate is 28.67. Mr. 

 12



Wolfe noted if you add the building millage rate, it totals 33 mills. Mr. Seeds noted that 10% 

sounds like a lot but it is only $17.50 to the total bill for a home assessed at $200,000.  

Mr. Hornung questioned of the total real estate tax bill, what percentage of increase 

would it raise their entire tax bill. He noted that Dauphin County’s millage rate is 7.226, and the 

Central Dauphin School District rate is 13.860. Mr. Wolfe suggested that it would be .005 % for 

the entire bill.  

Mr. Wolfe noted that he would prepare a General Fund based upon a real estate tax 

millage rate of .9625 with the revenue generated from that increase going towards the GIF, 

showing it with the projects listed minus $350,000 in stormwater, and $153,000 for the George 

Park improvements. Mr. Seeds questioned if the financial and pavement management projects 

will be included. Mr. Wolfe answered yes.  

Mr. Wolfe noted that adoption of the 2011 Budget is to take place during the December 

21st Board meeting.  

Mr. Hornung noted that it is important that a footnote be added that any funds that go 

below the 25% threshold in the General Fund will be put back within the following two years. 

Mr. Crissman explained that he wished that capital improvements were a line item of the General 

Fund. He noted that it more easily shows what the ending balance will be. Mr. Hornung noted 

that you can blame that on him as he was the one who requested the separation of the funds. He 

noted that he wanted to compare expenses to expenses and capital projects to capital projects. He 

noted that whenever you see a transfer that means the Board is taking money out of its savings. 

Mr. Crissman noted that no one wants to raise taxes, but by the same token, if the Board doesn’t, 

then it can be challenged for putting its head in the sand and ignoring that a real problem exists. 

He suggested that the Board has an obligation to the community to do this.  

Mr. Blain noted that the bottom line is that real estate tax is the only tax that the Board 

can raise. Mr. Hawk noted that everything else is going up. Mr. Crissman noted that the Board 

has managed the municipality to the maximum and has done everything it can to make cuts and 

we are bare bones and managing very well.  

 

 

 

 

 13



 14

Adjournment 

There being no further business, Mr. Blain made a motion to adjourn the workshop 

meeting. Mr. Crissman seconded the motion, the meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted,     

 
 

Maureen Heberle      
Recording Secretary      
 
Approved by, 

 
 

Gary A. Crissman 
Township Secretary 


	Minutes of Workshop Meeting held December 7, 2010
	Pledge of Allegiance


